
 
 
 

 
  23 November 2020 

 
     

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 1 December 2020 

beginning at 
6:15 pm 

  
PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’. The meeting can be viewed 

here: https://bit.ly/2HsA6Vn 
 

 
TO: Councillor Steve Holes (Chairman) 
 Councillor Alex Bourne (Vice-Chairman) 

 Councillor Rob Rushton 
Councillor Margaret Atkinson 
Councillor Ray Dean 
Councillor Adam Manning 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Adrian Trace 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
Councillor Bruce Tennent 
  

CC: Councillor Keith House Council Leader 
  
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298 

Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 
Sarah King, Corporate Director, Support Services (CFO), tel 
023 8068 8011 Email: sarah.king@eastleigh.gov.uk 

  
NATALIE WIGMAN 

Corporate Director – Strategy  
____________________________________________________________________ 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website - 
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings as well as in other formats, including 

Braille, audio, large print and other languages, upon request. 
 

PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen-in to 
proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the 
Council website at least 24hrs before the meeting. It is important, however, that 

Councillors can discuss and take decisions without disruption, so the only 
participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors concerned, the officers 
advising the Committee and any participants who have registered in advance to 

speak. This meeting may be recorded. 

 

Eastleigh House  
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

1

https://bit.ly/2HsA6Vn
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes      
  
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2020 will be tabled at this 

meeting. 
  
3. Declarations of Interest     
 
4. Public Participation     
 
5. Internal Audit Monitoring Statement    (Pages 5 - 26) 
 
6. Corporate Risk Management Annual Report    (Pages 27 - 44) 
 
7. Exempt Business      
  
 To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 

Act 1972 in respect of the following item(s) of business on the grounds that it 
is/they are likely to involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.  
  
The Schedule 12A categories have been amended and are now subject to the 
public interest test, in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  This 
came into effect on 1 March 2006. 
  
It is considered that the following items are exempt from disclosure and that the 
public interest in not disclosing the information outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 

  
 EXEMPT ITEM  
  
8. COVID 19 Business Support Loan    (Pages 45 - 70) 

 
 

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 12 January 2021 at 6:15 pm 

 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


 
AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

1 December 2020  

INTERNAL AUDIT MONITORING STATEMENT  

FOR THE PERIOD 1 JULY 2020 TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2020 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit 

 

Recommendations  

It is recommended that Audit and Resources Committee considers the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for the second quarter of 2020/21. 

 

 

Summary 
 

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 was approved by this Committee on 10 
March 2020. A revised plan, which was necessary following the Covid-19 
pandemic, was presented and approved by this Committee on 28 July 2020. 
Progress made against the plan for quarter 2 is now reported (Appendix A). 

 The Head of Internal Audit advised the Committee, when presenting the Internal 
Audit Monitoring Statement for Quarter 1 on 8 September 2020, that work to 
support the response to the Covid-19 pandemic had continued into quarter 2 and 
that she was closely assessing the impact this had on resources and the Internal 
Audit Team’s capacity for completing the audit reviews as per the revised Internal 
Audit Plan 2020/21. This report presents a further revised Internal Audit Plan to 
cover the remaining 6 months of 2020/21. The proposed 6 month Audit Plan can 
be found in Appendix B and this Committee is asked to approve the proposed 
plan.   

 Progress made on the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations is 
detailed in Appendix C. 

 

Statutory Powers 
S.151 Local Government Act 1972 
Accounts & Audit Regulations 2015 
 
 

 

 

3

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. The Internal Audit Team provides independent assurance that the Council’s risk 
management, governance and control processes are efficient, compliant, work 
effectively and support ambitions of the Council.  Internal Audit helps the 
Council accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Introduction 

2. The Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 and Revised Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 were 
approved by this Committee on 10 March 2020 and 28 July 2020. Performance 
against the Audit Plan is reported to Members of the Committee periodically 
throughout the year as per the Internal Audit Charter which was approved by 
this Committee on 10 March 2020. This report is the second monitoring 
statement for the current financial year (2020/21) and outlines audit activity for 
the period 1 July 2020 to 30 September 2020, as summarised in appendices A 
and C. 

Resources 

3. From 1 April 2020 the in-house Internal Audit Team comprises a Head of 
Internal Audit (0.76 full time equivalent (FTE)), one full-time Senior Internal 
Auditor, one full-time Internal Auditor and one Internal Audit Apprentice (Fixed 
Term Contract until October 2021).  

4. The Internal Audit Apprentice’s performance and development since his 
appointment in October 2019 has been exceptional. Despite the restrictions of 
working from home and completing his learning remotely the Head of Internal 
Audit is pleased to report that he has completed a significant proportion of 
modules and an exam ahead of schedule and is well on his way to completing 
the Level 4 Apprenticeship and qualifying as an Internal Audit Practitioner.  

5. It was originally planned that the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 be solely 
resourced from the in-house team and that no additional resource would need 
to be bought-in to support delivery. However, given the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic and the ongoing support the Internal Audit team are providing, the 
Head of Internal Audit has to report to this Committee that the current internal 
audit resource is not sufficient to meet the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 as 
revised and approved by this Committee on 28 July 2020. Whilst this is 
disappointing, the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic has been unprecedented 
and the support the team has given to the Council has been extremely valuable 
and essential. The Head of Internal Audit has greatly considered how the team 
can continue to provide independent assurance on risk management, 
governance and control processes over a condensed period of time. An 
alternative approach to internal audit activity for 2020/21 is proposed for the 
remaining 6 months of the year and is explained in paragraphs 8-13. 
 

 

4



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Internal Audit – Proposed 6 month Plan for 2020/21 
 

6. The Internal Audit Annual Opinion for 2019/20, presented to this Committee on 
28 July 2020 confirmed that 20 of the 23 planned audits for 2019/20 had been 
completed with reviews of Asset Management, Corporate Governance and 
Housing Transactions (One Horton Heath) still to be completed. These reviews 
were put on hold whilst the team supported the Council with the response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Work recommenced during the latter part of quarter 1 and 
continued into quarters 2 and 3 of 2020/21. When the reviews are completed 
the Head of Internal Audit will review her Annual Audit Opinion 2019/20 and if 
necessary, provide an updated opinion to this Committee.  

 
7. Appendix A shows an analysis of planned days against actual days for the 

period 1 July to 30 September 2020. As previously reported to this Committee 
the Internal Audit Team paused planned audit work and supported the Council 
in the response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This work was essential and took 
priority. The Head of Internal Audit revised the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 to 
account for this and presented the revised plan to this Committee for approval 
on 28 July 2020. The Revised Plan was always designed to be fluid and flexible 
and given that it has now been determined by the Head of Internal Audit that 
the current resource will not be sufficient to complete audit reviews as per the 
Revised Plan she is proposing that an Agile 6 month Internal Audit Plan 
2020/21 is approved by this Committee. 

8. It was not anticipated when proposing the original and revised Internal Audit 
Plans for 2020/21 to this Committee just how great an impact the pandemic 
would have on the activity of the Internal Audit Team. The Internal Audit Plan 
was originally adjusted by 80 days, which at the time was a reasonable and 
prudent modification, split as follows: 

 20 days for work carried forward from quarter 4 of 2019/20 to 2020/21 (40 
days in total) and; 

 60 days to support the response to Covid-19. These 60 days were almost 
fully utilised in quarter 1.  

9. During quarter 2 a further 41 days has been provided by the Internal Audit 
Team in continuing to support the Covid-19 response summarised as follows: 

 34 days on business grants post payment assurance and fraud assessment. 
This work continues into Quarter 3 and beyond.  

 4 days advising on new processes in response to the pandemic and new 
ways of working 

 3 days on recovery arrangements and attendance at meetings of the 
Strategic Incident Management Team, to support the review of the Covid-19 
risk register, and Local Response Centre which continues into Quarter 3.  

10. Although planned audit reviews may not have commenced, Councillors should 
be assured that the Internal Audit Team is continuing to provide independent 

5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

assurance and valuable advice and support through unplanned, agile 
approaches to activity.  

11. For the remaining 6 months of the year there is a capacity of 473 days from in-
house Internal Audit resource. Of which, 293 days are classified as direct days 
which are attributable to a specific audit activity and 180 days are classified as 
indirect days (accounting for example annual leave, unplanned absence, 
training and development, office management). A further risk assessment has 
been carried out to determine how to utilise these days ensuring that: 

 high risk areas, including any revisions to risks following an assessment of 
the  impact of Covid-19, are covered; 

 there is sufficient audit coverage for the Head of Internal Audit to provide an 
Audit Opinion for 2020/21. 

12. The 6 Month Internal Audit Plan requires 335 ‘direct days’. It is proposed that 
the shortfall of 42 days is met through casual audit resource at a cost of £5,000 
to be funded from the Support Services Temporary Staff budget.   

13. The 6 Month Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 is proposed in Appendix B. 
Councillors are asked to approve this unique and unprecedented approach to 
the provision of the Internal Audit Service for the remaining 6 months of 
2020/21.  

Internal Audit Activity – Quarter 2 

14. During the second quarter the following review, carried forward from 2019/20 
was completed: 

 Housing Developments – One Horton Heath: This is the first time this local 
authority has embarked on self-delivery of such an ambitious housing 
scheme and it is planned delivery will span over 10 years. The Council’s 
property portfolio and level of borrowing has already drawn national attention 
and it seems logical to expect a project of this scale will also be closely 
scrutinised, analysed and critiqued. The Council should prepare for this and 
it is therefore paramount that appropriate arrangements are in place for 
governance, risk management and control. 

It is essential that the One Horton Heath programme has clear and 
transparent and compliant governance arrangements including accurate 
records of decisions that have been made so that the Council can continue 
to demonstrate that the delivery of the programme has and will underpin the 
aim of sustaining the Borough’s prosperity where people want to live, work 
and visit and demonstrates good stewardship of public money.  

The audit review has found opportunities to strengthen governance and 
decision making processes for the One Horton Heath programme. At the 
time of audit review the approval to proceed with self-delivery had not been 
explicitly given by Cabinet and the viability of the revised delivery method 
had not been fully determined although it is clear that this is the preferred  

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

direction the programme is following. There is a potential risk that, as with 
any project, the programme could progress without the appropriate 
approvals and it has been recommended that governance arrangements are 
monitored by the Project Board. Since the audit review was concluded 
further approvals have been given by Cabinet to enable self-delivery to be 
considered and formally approved by Cabinet in the future, with the formal 
decision to self-deliver phase 1 anticipated by the end of the financial year. 
Furthermore, controls need to be closely adhered to as the audit found 
instances where operational processes (recruitment/procurement) had not 
been complied with. There needs to be really robust arrangements for the 
retention of documentation and clear audit trails to demonstrate that 
approvals have been granted and processes followed. As a result, 24 
recommendations have been made; 8 graded priority 2 (high risk), 15 graded 
priority 3 (medium risk) and 1 graded priority 4 (low risk). The Head of 
Internal Audit met with the Project Sponsor (Chief Executive), Project 
Director, Head of Finance, and Monitoring Officer to discuss the audit 
findings on 11 November 2020 and an action plan responding to the 
recommendations is to be completed. It should be noted by Councillors that 
action has already begun to address the high risk recommendations with one 
grade 2 recommendation already being implemented. Given the scale of the 
project the One Horton Heath Programme will be subject to annual internal 
audit reviews. The Head of Internal Audit will closely monitor the 
implementation of audit recommendations.  

15. During the second quarter the following reviews carried forward from 2019/20 
continued and will be subject to comment in the Head of Internal Audit’s next 
Monitoring Report: 

 Asset Management 

 Corporate Governance  

16. During the second quarter, the following reviews from the 2020/21 Annual 
Internal Audit Plan were completed: 

 Healthworks - the review concluded that HealthWorks provides a good 
service that is monitored well. Strategically the service delivers well as part 
of the Corporate Plan. There were however some weaknesses in the current 
system of internal control particularly with regards the collection of 
income. Processes, as well as controls, in this area must be improved and 
recommendations have been made to assist with this. As a result 12 
recommendations were made; 2 graded as priority 2 (high risk), 9 graded as 
priority 3 (medium risk) and 1 graded as priority 4 (low risk). The 
recommendations have been accepted and are in the process of being 
implemented. The high risk recommendations around income processes will 
be addressed prior to any Healthworks fitness classes recommencing 
following their pause as a result of the Covid-19 Pandemic.  

 Car and travel loans – The review identified some governance weaknesses 
particularly around the car loan scheme. There are currently 29 active car 
loans totalling £121,120. Testing found that there were weaknesses in the 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

administration and authorisation of these loans. 13 recommendations were 
made; 3 graded as priority 2 (high risk), 6 graded as priority 3 (medium risk) 
and 4 graded as priority 4 (low risk). The first high risk recommendation was 
regarding the approval arrangements which are currently not in line with 
delegated powers. The second high risk recommendation was regarding the 
need for clarification on whether the loan arrangements are fully compliant 
with the Consumer Credit Act 1974. The final high risk recommendation was 
regarding the legal templates (loan agreements) involved in the process 
which are currently under review. Internal Audit recommends that this review 
is extended to include the existing loan agreements and consideration given 
to the feasibility of any necessary retrospective variations to ensure 
enforceability should there be a challenge. Recommendations have been 
accepted and action is progressing.  

17. During the second quarter the following reviews from the 2020/21 Annual 
Internal Audit Plan commenced and continue into the third quarter and will be 
subject to comment in a later monitoring report: 

 Accounts Receivable (Debtors) – continued from quarter 1 

 Building Control Partnership Arrangements  

 Petty cash 

18. During the quarter Internal Audit continued working with officers responsible for 
the development of new systems and processes and, as reported to this 
Committee previously, is responsible for reviewing and commenting upon 
systems of internal control prior to going live and also providing adhoc guidance 
and advice for other Council activities and processes.  

Audit Recommendations 

19. Appendix C provides details of the recommendations that remain outstanding 
from the 2018/19 and 2019/20 internal audits, along with the level of assurance 
given.  It will develop over the coming year as 2020/21 audit work is completed. 
 

20. At the time of writing this report there are a total of 39 priority graded 2 (high 
risk) recommendations outstanding: 

 
2020/21 Audit Reviews (5 high risk recommendations): 

 Healthworks (2 recommendations) – in respect of income processes as 
reported in paragraph 16 above. It is understood that this will be addressed 
by the end of November 2020 and before any classes recommence. 

 Car and other Loans (3 recommendations) – in respect of car loan 
governance as reported in paragraph 16 above. The Head of Internal Audit 
has been advised that recommendations will be addressed and implemented 
by 31 December 2020. 

 
 
 
 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

2019/20 Audit Reviews (27 high risk recommendations): 

 Bank Reconciliation (2 recommendations) – these recommendations are 
regarding the need to produce a balanced reconciliation. The Head of 
Finance has advised that work continues to identify the specific cause of an 
imbalance of approximately £330. It is planned that a balanced reconciliation 
will be produced by 28 February 2021.  

 Accounting for Fixed Assets (Land and Property) (1 recommendation) – this 
recommendation is to reconcile the Computerised Land and Property 
System (CLP) with the Finance Asset Register and will be completed by 30 
June 2021 as part of the development of a new Asset Management System. 

 Local Taxation (2 recommendations) – these recommendations are 
regarding the implementation of a process for reviewing NNDR properties 
and inspections and reviewing potential alternative means of collecting long 
term debts. The recommendations are due to be implemented by 31 October 
2020. 

 Event Management (1 recommendation) – the outstanding recommendation 
is regarding a review by Legal Services of the published terms and 
conditions of using Council owned land to host events. The review is being 
progressed by Legal Services. 

 Commercial rents (4 recommendations) – a response to this report has now 
been received (2 October 2020) and it is planned that recommendations will 
be fully implemented by 31 December 2020. The Internal Audit Team are 
planning to carry out a follow up review in January 2021.   

 Planning Fees (10 recommendations) – action to progress these 
recommendations continues. 

 One Horton Heath (7 recommendations) – see paragraph 14. 
 

2018/19 Audit Reviews (7 high risk recommendations): 

 Tree Stock Management (1 recommendations) - Tree Policy and Risk 
Management Plan was to be adopted by March 2020. Extensive work has 
been completed and the Tree Management system is being upgraded. The 
Draft Policy was reviewed by Management Team in September 2020. It is 
planned that the Final Policy will be approved by Management Team in 
November 2020 after which it will be presented to Policy and Performance 
and Cabinet in January 2021. 

 Corporate Governance (4 recommendations) - Implementation of the 
recommendations being monitored by the Corporate Governance Group. 
The outstanding recommendations are in respect of a review of the Staff 
Code of Conduct and process for recording declarations of interest which the 
Head of HR is progressing and two recommendations regarding partnership 
arrangements. An Internal Audit review of Corporate Governance and 
Partnership Arrangements is in progress and will follow up these 
recommendations. 

 Traffic Management (1 recommendations) – this recommendation is 
regarding the need for a formal Traffic Management Policy. The absence of 
progress in the implementation of this outstanding recommendation has 
been escalated to Management Team who are looking at developing a new 
approach to the management of Traffic Management and therefore the 
absence of a policy will be included as part of that review. 

9



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Building Control Partnership (1 recommendation) - the absence of progress 
in the implementation of this outstanding recommendation regarding the 
review of the Partnership Agreement with Southampton City Council was 
escalated to Management Team. It is understood that a review has taken 
place, appropriate revisions made and that the Agreement has been signed 
by Eastleigh and is with Southampton City Council to finalise.  The Internal 
Audit review of the Building Control Partnership 2020/21 has commenced 
and therefore any further recommendations may require a further revision to 
the agreement.   

 
21. The outstanding recommendations were presented and discussed with the 

Corporate Management Team on 14 October 2020. A commitment has been 
made by the Corporate Management Team that all areas where the Head of 
Internal Audit has highlighted there remains a significant risk will be fully 
addressed and resolved by the end of the financial year.   
 

22. With the Corporate Management Team’s commitment the Head of Internal 
Audit is currently satisfied that appropriate action is being taken to address the 
outstanding recommendations and considers that there are no matters that 
require escalation to this Committee although the Committee can, should it 
wish, invite officers to attend a future meeting to provide a progress report. 
 

Financial Implications 

23. There are no significant financial implications arising from this report. The 
appointment of a casual audit resource to support the completion of audit 
reviews as per the 6 month Internal Audit Plan 2020/21, if approved by this 
Committee, will cost approximately £5,000 to be funded from the Support 
Services temporary staff budget.  

Risk Assessment 

24. The Head of Internal Audit must establish and maintain a system to monitor the 
disposition of audit results communicated to management. By not monitoring 
the progress made with the implementation of audit recommendations, the 
Head of Internal Audit would be failing to meet requirements of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and Internal Audit Charter. This report provides 
Management and this Committee with details of the progress made.  

25. The Internal Audit team has been working remotely since 17 March 2020. 
Therefore it should be noted that currently audit testing is being completed at 
arms-length which pleasingly has been successful where systems and 
processes are paperless and electronic. However on some occasions reliance 
has to be placed on observations and verbal explanations of systems due to 
the Audit Team being unable to access physical records whilst the offices are 
closed. Where this has occurred, this is noted in the individual audit report and 
if necessary, following an assessment of the risk; further testing is planned to 
be carried out once the Team are able to safely access the office/physical 
records. The Head of Internal Audit recognises this as a risk, but the health and 
safety of staff is paramount at this point. She has updated the Internal Audit 

10



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Risk Register to reflect the impact of the pandemic on the strength of audit 
testing. The situation is unprecedented and whilst professional standards 
encourage the move to ‘lean’ auditing, it would have been preferable to do this 
through a planned systematic approach. The Head of Internal Audit is keen for 
this Committee to be aware of the current situation and assures Councillors it is 
being closely monitored.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

26. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report and an Equality 

Impact Assessment has not been carried out. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

27. There are no proposals within this report to assess with regard to climate 
change and environmental implications. However some recommendations 
made by Internal Audit, when implemented may have direct or indirect result on 
benefits and improvements to activity surrounding climate change and 
environmental implications. 

Conclusion 

28. 2020/21 has been a very exceptional year and the Internal Audit Team has had 
to demonstrate extreme flexibility in terms of variations to planned work but also 
having to conduct work remotely. Impact on the Audit Plan will continue to be 
closely monitored and reported to this Committee. 

29. The approval of a further revised plan for the remaining 6 months of the year 
will ensure that there is planned activity for the Internal Audit Team which 
continues to add value and provide assurance on governance, risk 
management and control arrangements in those areas assessed as high risk. 
The Head of Internal Audit must emphasise at this point that the Plan must 
remain fluid and flexible so that Internal Audit resources can be redirected to 
support the response to the Coronavirus Pandemic. 

 

JOANNE CASSAR 
HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT  

 
Date: 9 November 2020 
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: THREE 

 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 

11



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 

 Internal Audit Charter 2020/21 
 
 

12



Appendix A 
 

 

 

Internal Audit Monitoring Statement - Quarter 2 2020/21

2020/21 Total   

Plan Days*

2020/21 Total 

Revised Plan Days*

Q2 Planned days Q2 Actual Days Variance

Direct time (attributable to a specific audit review)

Major Systems 125 160 75.00 4.00 -71.00

Corporate Governance 22 20 0.00 0.25 0.25

Corporate Support 91 81 20.50 39.25 18.75

Corporate Systems 40 40 5.00 7.00 2.00

Strategy 75 40 0.00 0.00 0.00

Support Services 78 43 5.50 14.50 9.00

Service Delivery 110 77 32.00 26.50 -5.50

Contract/Final Account Audits 5 5 0.00 0.00 0.00

Members Scrutiny 10 10 0.00 0.00 0.00

Investigations 20 20 2.75 0.50 -2.25

Consultancy 15 15 4.00 3.00 -1.00

Prior Year Audit Completion 20 40 0.00 2.50 2.50

Help & Advice 20 20 10.00 14.00 4.00

Covid-19 - Response and Support 0 60 10.00 41.00 31.00

Total direct days 631 631 164.75 152.50 -12.25

Indirect time (not attributable to a specific audit review) 

Annual Leave/Sick leave/Other leave 36.00 31.25 -4.75

Training/Management/Development/Admin 43.25 60.25 17.00

Total in-direct days 316 316 79.25 91.50 12.25

Grand Total 947 947 244.00 244.00 0.00

* as approved by Audit & Resources Committee 10 March 2020 & revised 28 July 2020 as a result of the impact of Covid-19

13



APPENDIX B 
AGILE COVID-19 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 
 
Summary plan 

 
 
 

2020/21 
Planned days  

(as approved by Audit & 
Resources Committee 

10 March 2020) 
 

2020/21 
REVISED 
PLANNED 

DAYS  
(impact of Covid-19 
approved 28 July 

2020) 

2020/21  
6 month 

COVID-19 
INTERNAL 

AUDIT PLAN 

MAJOR SYSTEMS  125 160 140 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 22 20 10 

CORPORATE SUPPORT 91 81 41 

CORPORATE SYSTEMS 40 40 25 

STRATEGY 75 40 10 

SUPPORT SERVICES 78 43 20 

SERVICE DELIVERY 110 77 12 

CONTRACT AUDIT 5 5 0 

MEMBERS SCRUTINY 10 10 10 

INVESTIGATIONS/ 
CONTINGENCY/ COUNTER 
FRAUD 

20 20 10 

CONSULTANCY 15 15 7 

PRIOR YEAR END 
COMPLETION 

20 40 0 

HELP & ADVICE  20 20 10 

COVID-19: SUPPORT & 
RESPONSE 

- 60 40 

TOTAL DAYS 
 

631 631 335 

RESOURCES AVAILABLE  
 

631 631 293 

Shortfall in resources 
 

0 0 42 

  

 
  

14



Revised 6 month Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 
 

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

Major Financial Systems   

Accounting System H  15 15 

Accounting for Fixed Assets H    

Budgetary control H 15 15 15 

Treasury Management H 15 15 15 

Cash Collection & Banking H 20 20 20 

Bank Reconciliation H    

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H  20 5  
(in progress) 

Accounts Payable (Creditors) H 20 20 20 

Payroll H 20 20 20 

Local Taxation H   5 

Housing Benefit & Council Tax Support H 25 25 25 

Contingency - 10 10  

Sub total  125 160 140 

Corporate Governance   

Annual Governance Statement - 2 2  

Internal review of Audit - 3 3  

External review of Audit -    

Follow up of Audit Recommendations  10 10 5 

Corporate Governance H 5 5 5 

Business Continuity Planning H    

Local Government Transparency Agenda  - 2   

Sub total  22 20 10 

Corporate Support   

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

Audit Liaison  - 8 8 3 

Prevention of Fraud & Corruption - 50 40 20 

National Fraud Initiative - 15 15 8 

IT System Development/Implementation - 10 10 5 

Corporate Risk Management Group - 2 2 1 

Procurement Executive Group - 2 2 1 

ICT Board & Data Security Group - 2 2 1 

Other Programme Boards/Project Groups  - 2 2 2 

Sub total  91 81 41 

Corporate Systems    

Housing Development Programme H 10 10 10 

Community Investment Programme H 10   

Insurance – Management & Administration H 10 10  

Taxation – VAT & Sub Contractors H 5 5 5 

Safeguarding – Children and Vulnerable 
Adults  

H    

Health & Safety (inc Events 
Management/CDM) 

H    

Contract & Partnership Management H  10 10 

Commercialisation  M    

Authorised Signatories M    

Car Club L 5 5  

Controlled Stationery  L    

Sub total   40 40 25 

Strategy Directorate    

Strategic Planning  H 10   

Procurement Arrangements H 10 10  

Risk Management  H 10 10  

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

Climate & Environmental Strategy H 10 10 5 

Project Management/PIR Controls H    

Corporate Performance Management M 10 10  

Social Media Policy M    

Community Grants M    

Community Safety M    

Employee Performance Management M 10   

Customer Complaints & Compliments M 10   

Marketing  M    

Community Engagement  M 5   

Election Expenses M    

Electoral Registration  M    

Markets L    

Sponsorship (all) & Advertising Income L    

Communications & Civic/Mayoralty L    

Sub total  75 40 5 

Support Services Directorate    

Asset Management H   10 

Asset Maintenance H 10 10  

Commercial Rents H   5 

Facilities Management H 10   

Information Legislation (Data 
Protection/FOI) 

M    

Records and Information Management  M    

Management Agreements M 10   

Business Applications M 10 10 5 

ICT Service Delivery & Management M 5 5 3 

IT Infrastructure M 5 5 2 

17



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

Corporate Credit Card M 5   

Travel, subsistence, officer expenses M    

Legal Fees M    

Recruitment & Selection M 10   

Time & Attendance System M    

Training & Development M    

Sickness Absence Monitoring M    

Case Management – Support Services M    

Grant Funding (inwards) M 5 5  

Car & Travel Loans L 5 5  

Members Allowances L    

Cheque security & control L    

Print Unit (Glass Box)  L     

Allotments L    

Petty Cash L 3 3  

Sub Total  78 43 25 

Service Delivery Directorate    

Developers’ Contributions H 10 12 12 

Fleet Management H 10 10  

Enforcement  H 10 10  

Commercial Waste M    

Waste Management M    

Green Waste System M    

Street Scene M 5 5  

Pest Control M    

Small works M 5 5  

Tree Stock Management M    

Vehicle Workshop M    

18



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

The Point & The Berry (Business & 
Operations)  

M    

Arts Development (inc Youth Theatre) M    

Wessex House  M    

Countryside Land Management (all parks) M 10   

Country Parks Operations M 10   

Case Management  M 10 10  

Car Parks M 10 10  

Residents Permits M    

Civil Parking Enforcement  M    

Health Licences (inc Private Rented 
Accommodation)  

M 10   

Hampshire Home Choice M    

Homelessness M 5   

Tenancy Start Up /Top Up Rent  M    

Housing Grants & DFGs  M    

Planning Fees  M    

Land Charges M    

Building Control Fees – Administration & 
Management of Partnership Arrangements 

M 10 10  

Licensing – SCC Partnership M    

Hire of Community Facilities  M    

Traffic Management M    

Healthworks  L 5 5  

Cemeteries L    

Sub total  110 77 12 

Contract Audit - 5 5 0 

Members Scrutiny  - 10 10 10 

19



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

AUDIT UNIVERSE 

RISK INDEX 
H=High 

M=Medium 
L=Low  

 

2020/21 
PLANNED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 10 March 

2020) 

2020/21 
REVISED AUDIT 

DAYS  
(as approved by Audit 

& Resources 
Committee 28 July 

2020) 

 
2020/21 

6 MONTH 
REVISED 

AUDIT DAYS 

Consultancy/Improvement (VFM) - 15 15 7 

Investigations/Contingency - 20 20 10 

Prior Year Audit Completion  - 20 40 0 

Help and Advice  - 20 20 10 

COVID-19: SUPPORT & RESPONSE - - 60 40 

Total Audit days  631 631 335 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

20



Appendix C 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Progress of the implementation of Internal Audit recommendations - 2020/21 Quarter 2

Audit Title

A
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
in

d
e

x 
(f

ro
m

 

A
n

n
u

al
 P

la
n

) 
*

H
ig

h
 (

H
)

M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
)

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

D
at

e
 o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
e

p
o

rt

D
at

e
 o

f 
R

e
sp

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. 
o

f 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s*
*

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
fu

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 2

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s*
**

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 2

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
fu

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 o
r 

2
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

A
gr

e
e

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

d
at

e

Audit reviews 2020/21:

Accounts Receivable (Debtors) H Commenced in Quarter 1, continues into Quarter 2.

Petty Cash L Commenced in Quarter 1, continues into Quarter 2.

Car and other Travel Loans L Limited Adequate 15.09.20 15.09.20 13 0 0 3 1 3 31.10.20

Healthworks L Adequate Adequate 28.08.20 28.08.20 12 0 0 2 0 2 30.11.20

Building Control Partneship Arrangements M Commenced in Quarter 2, continues into Quarter 3.

Total 2020/21 25 0 0 5 1 5

Bank Reconciliation H Limited Limited 18.05.20 16.06.20 2 0 - 2 0 2 28.02.21

Accounting for Fixed Assets - Land & Property H Limited Limited 02.07.20 27.07.20 7 0 - 1 0 1 30.06.21

Local Taxation H Adequate Limited 11.03.20 30.06.20 26 0 - 4 2 2 30.10.20

System reviews 2019/20:

Event Management H Limited Limited 22.08.19 04.05.20 7 0 - 3 2 1 31.08.20

Commercial Rents H Limited Limited 08.07.20 02.10.20 23 0 - 4 0 4 31.12.20

Planning Fees M Limited Limited 01.07.20 20.07.20 32 0 - 10 0 10 TBC

Housing Developments - One Horton Heath H Limited Limited In draft In draft 24 0 - 8 1 7 TBC

Asset Management H In progress

Corporate Governance H In progress

Total 2019/20 121 0 0 32 5 27

Grading

Major Reviews 2019/20:

21



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Audit Title

A
u

d
it

 r
is

k 
in

d
e

x 
(f

ro
m

 A
n

n
u

al
 

P
la

n
) 

H
ig

h
 (

H
)

M
e

d
iu

m
 (

M
)

Lo
w

 (
L)

Ev
al

u
at

io
n

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

Te
st

in
g 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

D
at

e
 o

f 
Fi

n
al

 R
e

p
o

rt

D
at

e
 o

f 
R

e
sp

o
n

se

To
ta

l N
o

. 
o

f 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
(g

ra
d

e
d

 1
-

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s*

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
fu

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 2

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s*
*

N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 2

 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 
fu

ll
y 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 N
o

. 
o

f 
G

ra
d

e
 1

 o
r 

2
 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
at

io
n

s 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g/

in
 p

ro
gr

e
ss

A
gr

e
e

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 d

at
e

Tree Stock Management M Limited Limited 18.10.18 18.10.18 5 0 - 3 2 1 30.11.19

(revised 30.03.20)

(revised 30.09.20)

(revised 31.01.21)

Note 1

Corporate Governance H N/a N/a 02.07.19 02.08.19 20 0 - 5 1 4 31.12.19 Note 2

Traffic Management M Limited Adequate 21.05.19 25.06.19 15 0 - 3 2 1 30.11.19

Building Control Partnership - follow up review M N/a N/a 03.07.18 N/a 1 0 - 1 0 1 31.08.19 Note 3

Total 2018/19 41 0 0 12 5 7

187 0 0 49 11 39

Note 3 - The 2020/21 audit review of the Building Control Partnership commenced in Quarter 2 and will follow the outstanding recommendation up. 

** Grade 1 (Definition): Critical risk - a major or serious control weakness in the framework of control for the area under review. Exposes the Council to a critical risk.

** Grade 2 (Definition): High risk - A significant control weakness as key control missing in the framework of control for the area under review, not working or being adhered to. Exposes the Council to a 

Note 1 - Tree Policy and Risk Management Plan was to be adopted by March 2020. Extensive work has been completed and a new Tree Management system is to be procured and implemented by July 2020. The final Policy 

will be presented to Management Team in November 2020 and Policy and Performance Committee and Cabinet in January 2021.

Note 2 - Implementation of recommendations being monitored by the Corporate Governance Group. An Internal Audit review of Corporate Governance is in progress.

* Risk index is taken from the Annual Plan as approved by the Audit & Resources Committee. Risk based strategy forms appendix 1 of the Annual Plan and provides further explanation of the process.

Grading

2018/19 Audit reviews - Outstanding Recommendations 

Total 

22



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP 

12 November 2020 

AUDIT AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE  

1 December 2020 

CABINET 

10 December 2020 

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT - ANNUAL REPORT 

Report of the Head of Internal Audit  
 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the SRMG & the Audit & Resources Committee: 
(1) considers the Annual Risk Management Report, and; 
(2) note the content of the Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite 

Statement.  
 

It is recommended that Cabinet: 

(1) considers the Annual Risk Management Report, and; 
(2) approves the Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement. 

 

 

Summary 
 
Risk Management is a key element of the Council’s operational and strategic functioning. 
This report presents to Councillors the Annual Report and asks Cabinet to approve the 
Risk Management Framework and Risk Appetite Statement as outlined in Appendices A 
and B.  

Statutory Powers 
 
S151 Local Government Act 1972 

 

 

25

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Strategic Implications  

1. This report relates to all of the Council’s Corporate Objectives and the 
framework that supports the management of risks to meet those objectives. 
The Risk Appetite supports strategic priorities in certain areas and is designed 
to be flexible in recognition of the Council operating more innovatively and 
dynamically.  

Introduction 

2. During 2019/20 Corporate Risk Management was coordinated by the 
Strategic Planning Manager and monitored by the Strategic Risk Management 
Group (SRMG). In September 2020 this responsibility transferred to the Head 
of Internal Audit who is able to ensure congruence with the role of Internal 
Audit in providing independent assurance on risk, governance and control 
arrangements.  

3. This Annual Report provides a summary of Risk Management activity during 
2019/20 and also presents the Risk Management Framework (the Policy) and 
Risks Appetite Statement.  

Definition of Risk Management 

4. Risk has been defined as the threat that an event or action will adversely 
affect an organisation’s ability to achieve its objectives and to successfully 
execute its strategies. Risk Management is the process by which risks are 
identified, evaluated and controlled. It is a key element of the framework of 
governance.  

Risk Framework & Risk Appetite  

5. A member of the Audit and Resources Committee is appointed to the 
Strategic Risk Management Group annually and regularly reports back 
developments and progress to the Audit and Resources Committee. The 
Group reviews risk arrangements and advises Management Team on risk 
issues within the Council and on existing and planned risk controls. Risks are 
reported by use of risk registers. Each service and programme of projects is 
required to update its own register as part of the performance management 
process. These registers are reviewed by service managers; project risks are 
reviewed by project managers with their project group and sponsor and 
overseen by programme managers. A corporate risk register exists to record 
high level risks which affect the work of several units or the whole Council, 
that are of strategic significance or for which further Management Team 
consideration or resource are required. 

6. Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution (Rules and Procedures) contains the 
Council’s Financial Regulations, of which Chapter 4 outlines arrangements for 
risk management and the control of resources. Paragraph 4.2 states “The 
Cabinet is responsible for approving the Council’s policy on risk management 
and for defining the Councillor, staff and committee structure through which 
risk management will be planned and monitored”. The Risk Management 

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Framework is attached at Appendix A and it is recommended that Cabinet 
approves this Policy.  

7. The risk appetite statement sets the tone for risk management, it details the 
amount and type of risk that the Council is willing to take in order to meet its 
strategic objectives and will support the achievement of these objectives. The 
Risk Appetite Statement is attached at Appendix B and it is recommended 
that it is given Cabinet approval.  

Risk Management Developments 2019/20 

8. Service Managers are responsible for managing risks using risk registers that 
are reviewed regularly as part of service performance management. SRMG 
met on 5 occasions during 2019/20; 25 July 2019, 12 September 2019, 14 
November 2019, 16 January 2020 and 12 March 2020. The Group reviewed 
the following service risk registers during 2019/20:  

 Strategy Directorate 

 Country Parks 

 Programmes 

 Specialist Services & Case Management 

 Customer Services 

 Local Services 

 Arts & Culture 

 Direct Services  

9. SRMG also considered the following matters during the year:  

 Events   

 Insurance  

 Training 

 Audit resources and Audit reports  

 Business Continuity  

 Procurement  

 Enforcement  

 Health and Safety  

 Fraud risks 

27



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Covid-19 pandemic 

 Homeworking & staff well-being 

10. The Corporate Risk Register was reported to the Corporate Management 
Team throughout the year. The Corporate Risk Register is managed by the 
Council’s Corporate Management Team and updated for newly stated risks 
and ongoing matters on a quarterly basis. The register is also reviewed by the 
SRMG and considered at least annually by Cabinet, with Cabinet members 
being kept appraised of corporate and portfolio-related risks throughout the 
year. 

11. During the final quarter of the year, the Coronavirus Global pandemic reached 
the United Kingdom and the Council immediately responded to Government 
advice. SRMG discussed the situation at its meeting on 12 March 2020 and 
agreed that there should be a review of business continuity plans and 
procedures for service areas, including arrangements for those in isolation 
and infected. The group were advised by the Safety and Resilience Manager 
that a Covid-19 working group had been assembled with and initial meeting 
on 12 March 2020.  

12. The Council immediately responded to Government advice and on 16 March 
2020 formed the Strategic Incident Management Team (SIMT) who met daily 
between 16 March 2020 and 15 April 2020 and continues to meet regularly. 

13. The Council must ensure that critical services continue to operate across the 
Borough. To ensure that risks are appropriately mitigated, a separate Covid-
19 specific Risk Register has been developed and is being kept under regular 
review by the Strategic Incident Management Team. This details the risks 
facing the Council and the impact on critical services. The Covid-19 Risk 
Register will be discussed in detail at each Strategic Risk Management Group 
meeting whilst responding to and recovering from the pandemic. 

Financial Implications 

14. There are no resource requirements associated with this report. Financial 
risks to the Council are included in the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and 
assessed and managed regularly by the Chief Financial Officer, reporting 
Treasury Management and other financial risks regularly to Audit and 
Resources Committee; financial risks of individual decisions are reported in 
standard paragraphs in committee reports. 

15. Appropriate mitigation of financial risks will ensure the public purse is 
appropriately safeguarded and support the achievement of strategic 
objectives.  

Risk Assessment 

16. The Council significantly reduces a number of varied risks by having a robust 
risk management framework in place. 

28



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

17. An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as service 
delivery is not directly affected by the report, although in determining risks 
individual services will be assessing equalities and diversity implications. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

18. Climate change and environmental implications features on the Corporate 
Risk Register and is discussed at each meeting of SRMG. The Council has 
recently appointed a Climate Change Manager and it is planned that this 
officer and the Strategic Planning Lead (Environment) are invited to attend a 
future SRMG meeting to discuss risk associated with the Climate Change & 
Environmental Strategy and Action Plan.  

Conclusion 

19. Risk management within the Council continues to be developed in accordance 
with good risk management practice and efforts are being made to ensure 
continuous improvement in risk management processes, as well as to further 
embed risk management awareness into Council business management. The 
practices and framework provide a sound platform for risk management 
throughout the organisation. 

 
JOANNE CASSAR 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT 
Date: 12 November 2020 
Contact Officer: Joanne Cassar  
Tel No: 02380 688015 
e-mail: joanne.cassar@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 2  
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

None 
 

29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A  
RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK – NOVEMBER 2020 

 

DEFINITIONS 
 

1. Risk is the potential of an action or event to impact on the Council’s achievement 
of objectives and the execution of its strategies.  Risks are things that might 
happen and are therefore different to issues (things that are happening or are 
certain to happen in the future).  Risks may be positive opportunities or negative 
threats.  
 

2. Risk Management is a process that allows individual risk events and overall risk 
to be identified, evaluated and managed proactively, optimising success by 
minimising negative likelihood and impact, and maximising opportunities. Risk 
Management is a key element of the framework of governance.  
 

3. The best formulation for describing a risk is: cause – event – effect: 
 

Cause Unplanned event Effect on objective 

Adverse weather 
may cause … 

… staff to arrive late for 
work… 

…which may have the effect 
of reducing customer service 
standards. 

 
 

RISK APPETITE 
 

4. Risk Appetite is defined as the level of risk the Council is prepared to accept to 
fulfil its mission and achieve its objectives. Levels of reward and costs of 
managing risks will determine the Council’s Risk Appetite. Risks outside the 
Council’s Risk Appetite will not be tolerated and must be managed (reduced, 
transferred, mitigated etc.). 
 

5. The overall risk appetite of the Council is defined as MODERATE, with varying 
appetite across different objectives and Council activities.   
 

6. The Council’s level of exposure to risk at any time is expressed in risk registers 
by the scoring of risks and the difference between current and target risk score 
(in line with Risk Appetite).   
 

7. Management and understanding of exposure will be achieved by considering and 
reviewing risks and by deploying mitigation controls that treat, tolerate, transfer, 
terminate risks or take opportunities. 
 

8. Reports from the Strategic Risk Management Group to Management Team 
quarterly will show the level of exposure to corporate risks at the time of reporting 
and the degree of difference between exposure and appetite. 
 

31



 

FRAMEWORK 
 

9. The risk management framework consists of four areas, which are subject to 
regular scrutiny and review: policy which is implemented by processes which 
are carried out by stakeholders using methods, which leads to a review of 
policy to ensure continuous self-improvement.  The Strategic Risk Management 
Group oversees this entire framework and regulates it as necessary, and the 
Head of Internal Audit (as Chair of SRMG) produces guidance and assistance to 
Councillors and staff for each of the four areas. 

 
POLICY 
 

10. The Council is committed to carrying out effective risk management at all levels 
and throughout all of its activities including operational, tactical and strategic 
processes, activities carried out in partnership with other organisations and 
functions carried out by the Council.  Evaluation will ensure that corporate 
objectives are successfully met and that the Council delivers the best possible 
services taking advantage of properly assessed opportunities for the benefit of its 
stakeholders. 
 

11. The Council’s risk management process shall: 

 ensure integration of risk management as a core part of business planning 

 include an effective risk identification, monitoring and review process at 
service, project, programme and corporate level 

 contribute towards sustainable improvements in service performance 

 reduce the number and cost of insurance claims made by and against the 
Council 

 improve the Council’s ability to defend claims against it 

 fully document major risks and their mitigation. 
 

12. The risk profile that the Council faces includes: 

 Strategic risks: threats to the achievement of corporate and strategic 
objectives, unwillingness or inability to adapt to changes in the Council’s 
business environment   

 Operational risks: potential lapse of performance standards, threats to 
achievement of operational objectives  

 Financial risks: risks to achieving a balanced budget, controlling costs 
(including borrowing costs) and achieving projects income levels  

 Reputational risks: Possible adverse perception of the Council by 
stakeholders  

 Failure to deliver statutory functions and meet legal requirements; incidences 
of fraud or corruption (Compliance risks) 

 
13. The Council will ensure that organisational infrastructure exists to ensure 

effective implementation of risk management processes and to ensure effective 
risk control by use of reporting mechanisms including Risk Registers. 

32



 
14. Potential threats to good risk management include: 

 

 Insufficient officer time available to drive risk initiatives 

 A lack of training for staff and Councillors 

 A lack of coordination of parts of the risk management framework 

 Insufficient management oversight of risk and risk processes 

 Lack of integration of risk management in business planning. 
 

15. Therefore, to be effective, this policy must meet the following objectives: 
 

 Risk management must be integrated in the culture of the Council’s 
Councillors and staff across all activities 
 

 Risk management must embody best practice, regular training and 
continuous self-improvement 

 

 Risks must be managed systematically, with Cabinet, Management Team, the 
Strategic Risk Management Group and the Audit and Resources Committee 
taking responsibility for the risk framework. 

 

PROCESS 
 

16. The key risk management process undertaken across the Council is the 
maintenance of service risk registers, which are created, owned and reviewed by 
services. The Strategic Risk Management Group conducts reviews of these 
registers in conjunction with the Corporate Risk Register where necessary.  
There are 13 such registers; each of the Council’s service areas and 
programmes will be reviewed by the SRMG at least once annually. Registers 
have been designed to provide complete records of risk including cause, 
ownership, existing controls, mitigation plans, resources required and mitigation 
timetables.  

 
17. The Corporate Risk Register is drafted, owned and reviewed by Corporate 

Management Team and reviewed by Strategic Risk Management Group which 
may make recommendations (to add, remove or amend risks on the register) to 
Corporate Management Team. 
 

18. SRMG may implement risk training for staff and Councillors to assist 
stakeholders in implementing the Risk Framework. 
 

33



STAKEHOLDER RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

19. Stakeholders in the context of risk management comprise the following groups: 
 
 

Stakeholder Group Responsibilities 

Cabinet Overseeing the effective management of 
risk through adoption of policy. 

Audit and Resources Committee 
(ARC) 

Overseeing the effective management of 
risk through assurance that policy is being 
implemented. 

Ward Councillors Considering risks in all decisions via the 
business of committees and panels 

Corporate Management Team 
(CMT) 

Producing the Corporate Risk Register 
and forwarding to SRMG; ensuring the 
implementation of policy; integrating risk 
management into the culture (routines, 
processes, values, behaviours) of the 
organisation. 

Strategic Risk Management Group 
(SRMG) 

Monitoring and assuring the 
implementation of the Risk Framework; 
reporting to Audit and Resources 
Committee, Corporate Management Team 
and Cabinet.  See details below. 

Service Heads Drafting the Risk Register for their service 
as part of business planning and reviewing 
and updating the register monthly as part 
of service performance review.  

Service Teams Understanding operational risks including 
service level health and safety issues. 

Programme Boards and Project 
Teams 

Drafting Programme and Project Risk 
Registers and forwarding to SRMG. 

Internal audit Comprehensive independent monitoring 
and reviewing of the Framework and risk 
controls. Risk Registers are used to inform 
the Annual Internal Audit Plan.  

 

METHODS 
 

20. The following methods and resources are available to enable risk management: 
 

 Service Risk Registers: service level registers are compiled by Service 
Managers and reviewed as part of performance and business management 
routines. Registers are made available to the Head of Internal Audit and 
SRMG, who review them and may recommend to CMT that risks of a higher 
level be escalated to the Corporate Risk Register in accordance with criteria 
agreed by the SRMG: 

34



o Very high levels of risk outside risk appetite / target risk score 
o Risks requiring CMT mitigation action 
o Risks of corporate significance. 

 

 Programme and Project Risk Registers: drafted and owned by Programme 
and Project Managers, reviewed by Programme and Project Boards and the 
SRMG as for Service Risk Registers. 

 

 Corporate Risk Register: drafted and owned by Corporate Management 
Team and reviewed by the SRMG. The Corporate Risk Register is a 
confidential document. If the Member representing Audit and Resources 
Committee on the SRMG feels that a risk contained on the Corporate Risk 
Register should be referred to other Members of the Audit and Resources 
Committee, the Member should raise and discuss the matter during a 
confidential session of the ARC meeting agenda. 

 

 Internal Audit: provide independent assurance on control issues by the use 
of a comprehensive and fluid Internal Audit Strategic Plan, driven in part by 
Service and the Corporate Risk Register.  The frequency of review is 
determined by the use of a well-developed risk index.  Following such reviews 
management are alerted to risks and asked to record such risks in their risk 
register.  This allows such risks to be addressed and monitored.  

 

 Insurance Management Consultancy: the Council pays for the services of a 
team of local government risk management consultants on occasions when 
external advice is required. 

 

35



STRATEGIC RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP  
 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Strategic Risk Management Group’s Terms of Reference are: 
 

1. ROLE 
 
Develop and maintain a framework, to ensure integration of risk management 
into business planning, to establish an assessment process to enable corporate 
objectives to be met and to promote good risk management practice throughout 
the Council and where relevant, to share this with partner organisations. 
 

2. MEMBERSHIP 
 
SRMG membership of the group includes: 
 

 One Member representative – appointed by the Audit and Resources 
Committee 

 Leader of the Council  

 Head of Internal Audit 

 Strategic Planning Manager 

 Senior Projects & Programmes Officer 

 Direct Services Manager  

 Safety and Resilience Manager 

 One Local Area Manager 

 Procurement and Insurance Officer 

 Corporate Health and Safety Officer 
 
Other officers and Members may be invited as necessary, depending on the 
agenda items scheduled for each meeting. 
 

3. FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 
 
The group will meet every 8 weeks.  Additional meetings will be held if 
circumstances require. 
 

4. AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

 Encourage a culture of risk management across the Council 

 Ensure appropriate risk management is embedded in all business 
processes via the provision of guidance to Councillors and staff 

 Manage and review the risk management framework to achieve continuous 
improvement 

 Ensure effective risk and mitigation reporting structures and systems are 
operational 

36



 Review service, programme, project, and corporate risks and advise as 
necessary 

 Provide or arrange appropriate Risk Management training for Councillors 
and staff 

 Periodically liaise with our Insurance consultants and external auditors to 
ensure the Council’s risk management framework and risk profile are 
satisfactory 

 Review and update the relevant risk management sections of the Council’s 
Constitution 

 
5. REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS AND RELATIONSHIPS 

 
The flow of risk reporting information is set out below. 
 

 
 
Any changes to the corporate risk profile will be reported to Cabinet, with the 
impact on corporate priorities and policy decision-making linked to these 
changes.   
 
Additionally, Internal Audit will notify the SRMG of risks identified during its own 
risk assessment process, as the Head of Internal Audit is a member of the group. 
 

6. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 
For each risk, the potential impact and likelihood are rated on scales of 1 to 5, 
then the resulting figures are multiplied together and rated such that a rating of 1 
indicates very low risk and 25 indicates the highest level of risk.  

37



 
The Risk Registers require users to record current risk ratings and ratings 
expected following a defined plan for mitigation.   
 

7. COUNCILLORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Elected Councillors are responsible for governing the delivery of services to the 
local community.  Failure to deliver services efficiently and high-level incidents 
and scandals often result in the public questioning the competence of those in 
charge. It often transpires that such failures and scandals could have been 
avoided if proper governance procedures had been operating effectively.  Such 
questions can impact on the public perception of individual Councillors or the 
Council as a whole.  Cabinet members have a responsibility to understand the 
strategic risks that their Council faces, and to decide how these risks should be 
managed.  They should not seek to avoid or delegate this overall responsibility as 
it is key to their stewardship responsibilities.  Cabinet members should: 

 seek implementation of a strategic risk management process as soon as is 
practical;  

 agree on the Councillor and staff structures for planning and monitoring risk 
management across the authority;  

 correctly position risk management as a strategic and operational tool that 
can help Councillor and staff to meet the challenges and demands facing 
them, rather than as a mere compliance exercise;  

 promote the desired mindset and attitude that is essential for successful 
implementation and robust, ongoing risk management processes;  

 view the process as a significant management exercise, with the right level 
of resources committed to implementation of risk policy and risk 
management measures;  

 take a top-down approach, focusing on issues of corporate significance 
rather than a ‘bottom-up’ exercise which would be too large to manage; and  

 aim for continual improvement on a longer-term basis. 

8. KEY TASKS FOR CABINET MEMBERS 

 

Councillors need to determine within existing leadership structures how they will 
plan and monitor the Council’s risk management arrangements.  They should: 

 decide on the structure through which risk management will be led and 
monitored;  

 consider appointing a particular group or committee, such as an audit 
committee, to oversee risk management policy and to provide a focus for 
the process;  

 approve the Council’s policy on risk 
 agree the Council’s risk appetite i.e. the degree to which the Council is 

willing to accept risk;  

38



 receive reports on risk management and internal control – officers should 
report annually on the effectiveness of the framework, with possibly interim 
reporting as necessary.  

Cabinet Members must support and monitor both implementation and ongoing 
risk management processes.  This includes: 

 embracing risk management in a positive way to:  
o drive service and organisational improvement;  
o assist in the achievement of Council’s objectives;  
o ensure that sensible management decisions are taken;  
o minimise the likelihood of things going wrong and their potential 

impact; and  
o provide a framework to meet new challenges. 

 promoting the right management culture on an ongoing basis. Most 
problems that materialise are likely to be people-based and arise through 
lack of proper application of management processes rather than through 
weaknesses in systems. 

39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
Eastleigh Borough Council Risk Appetite Statement November 2020 
 

Overall Appetite (November 2020) 
 

MODERATE 

(Risk Appetite (tolerance) range: AVERSE - CAUTIOUS – MODERATE – OPEN – AMBITIOUS) 

 
AVERSE: avoidance of risk and uncertainty, no inherent risk* 
CAUTIOUS: preference for safe options that have a low degree of risk but willing to 
accept/tolerate a degree of risk 
MODERATE: taking a balance approached, accepting/rejecting some risks 
OPEN: prepared to accept greater inherent risk 
AMBITIOUS: eager to be innovative and choose activities that focus on maximising 
opportunities and offering high reward but can carry high residual risk** 
 
*Inherent Risk – the current risk level given to the existing set of controls 
** Residual Risk – the risk level given after mitigating controls are introduced  

 
The Council’s overall attitude towards risk, across all its services, is currently assessed 
as MODERATE.  However given the diverse services provided across a dynamic and 
innovative Council, it is recognised that not one classification is appropriate and that 
some activities will be assessed on their own merit and the classification will therefore 
vary.  
 
Compliance Risk 
Compliance risk is the potential for losses and legal penalties due to failure to comply 
with laws or regulations. The Council is AVERSE to compliance risk. It must comply 
with legal requirements and carry out statutory duties and is entrusted with public funds 
to deliver services to residents. Some of the services of the Council relate to vulnerable 
individuals and families. 
 
Reputational Risk 
Reputational risk refers to the potential for negative publicity, public perception or 
uncontrollable events to have an adverse impact on the Council’s reputation.The 
Council’s brand and reputation is important in providing residents with confidence and 
security, but the Council accepts that some of its activities may be unpopular, or may 
not be fully understood by stakeholders; appetite towards reputational risk is therefore 
OPEN.  The Council is AMBITIOUS in relation to its community leadership to address 
Climate Change. 

 

Discretionary Services Activity 

In discretionary service areas, or for core services for a limited period, the Council will 
adopt an OPEN approach to risk, due to financial constraints and changes in the 
Council’s ways of working; the Council is prepared to accept a small negative impact 
upon its financial position in order to achieve its overall goals, especially when 
achievement of those goals will deliver substantial benefits to residents/businesses 
and/or realise significant longer-term efficiencies. 

 

41



APPENDIX B 
 

Innovation & Commercial Activity 
The Council’s appetite to risk is more OPEN where it needs to operate more 
innovatively and commercially in order to continue to provide services and achieve 
corporate objectives. The introduction of new ways of working, and the Council’s 
approach to commercial property investment and housing delivery are examples of the 
Council’s more AMBITIOUS appetite for risk; risks are more acceptable here because 
the opportunity for reward is greater; nevertheless robust measures are taken to 
mitigate risk e.g. treasury management. 
 
Health & Safety Risk 
The Council takes safety of residents, staff, and visitors to the borough very seriously 
and is AVERSE to risk in this area.  A range of policies and procedures are in place, as 
well as specific services that promote safety:  e.g. Food Hygiene, Health and Safety 
inspections of businesses, working practices by Direct Services operatives, Community 
Safety and Emergency Planning. 
 
The table below sets out a Risk Appetite scheme for Corporate Plan objectives. 
(Risk Appetite range: AVERSE - CAUTIOUS – MODERATE – OPEN – AMBITIOUS) 

 

 
 

Objective Finance 
 

Compliance Service 
delivery 

Reputation 

Tackling congestion  
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Developing green infrastructure 
 

Moderate Averse Open Open 

Excellent environment for all  
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Minimising waste and managing 
resources 

Moderate Averse Open Ambitious 

Enabling healthier lifestyles / wellbeing Moderate Averse Open Moderate 
Tackling deprivation 
 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Increased provision and more diverse 
mix of housing 

Ambitious Averse Ambitious Open 

Ensuring appropriate infrastructure 
including employment land 

Open Averse Moderate Open 

Enabling the right skills and 
employment mix 

Moderate Averse Moderate Moderate 

Reinvigorating town and local centres Open Averse Open Moderate 

42



Document is Restricted

43

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Internal Audit Monitoring Statement
	6 Corporate Risk Management Annual Report
	Corporate Risk Management App 1
	Corporate Risk Management App 2

	8 COVID 19 Business Support Loan
	Appendix. 1 for Covid-19 Business Support Loan
	Appendix. 2 for Covid-19 Business Support Loan_v1


